IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC09-2390

DCA NO. 3D08-188

LEONARDO MARRERO,

Petitioner,

-VS-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, THIRD DISTRICT

CARLOS J. MARTINEZ Public Defender Eleventh Judicial Circuit of Florida 1320 N.W. 14th Street Miami, Florida 33125 (305) 545-1960

SHANNON P. MCKENNA Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 0385158 Counsel for Petitioner

INTRODUCTION

Petitioner, Leonardo Marrero, seeks discretionary review of a decision of the Third District Court of Appeal that expressly conflicts with cases of this Court and other district courts of appeal. The symbol "A." refers to the opinion of the lower court, as set forth in the Appendix to this brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner, Leonardo Marrero, was charged and convicted of felony criminal mischief in violation of Section 806.13, Florida Statutes. *See* § 806.13(1)(b)3, Fla. Stat. (2006). (A. 2). On appeal, Mr. Marrero challenged the legal sufficiency of the evidence to establish that the damage threshold was \$1000 or greater, when there was no evidence presented regarding the cost of repair or replacement of the four glass entrance-doors damaged in the incident.

The incident took place after Mr. Marrero sustained gambling losses at the Miccosukee Casino. (A. 2). After leaving the casino, he drove his Ford F150 pickup truck into an entrance at casino. (A. 2). "The entrance consisted of four impact-resistant glass doors, sixteen or seventeen feet tall, each framed in special aluminum materials. One of these was a door with an automated entry system for the handicapped. The doors had been operational prior to the crash, but were destroyed and had to be replaced." (A. 2).

In its decision, the Third District Court of Appeal recognized that "[i]f there is no competent evidence of value, then the conviction must be for the lowest level of offense, a misdemeanor of the second degree. See id. § 806.13(1)(b)1." (A. 2-3). It also recognized that "[a]s a general rule, it will be necessary for the State to present evidence of the cost of repair or replacement in a criminal mischief case, if the State wishes to convict the defendant of mischief exceeding either the \$200 or \$1000 threshold. See id. § 806.13(1)(b)2., 3." (A. 3). The court further acknowledged that the state did not present any evidence of the cost of repair or replacement of the four doors. (A. 3). The Third District then explained that contrary to this general rule "[i]t has been said that 'a trial court may conclude 'that certain repairs are so self-evident that the fact-finder could conclude based on life experience that the statutory damage threshold has been met " T.B.S. v. State, 935 So. 2d 98, 99 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006) (quoting A.D. v. State, 866 So. 2d 752, 753 (Fla. 2d DCA 2004)); S.P. v. State, 884 So. 2d 136, 138 (Fla. 2d DCA 2004); Clark v. State, 746 So. 2d 1237, 1241 (Fla. 1st DCA 1999)." (A. 3-4).

Based on this "life-experience" exception to the general rule requiring evidence of the cost of repair or replacement, the Third District held: "In this case the jury had a videotape of the collision which destroyed four extremely tall impact-resistant doors, including one door with a special mechanism for

handicapped entry. We agree with the trial court that based on common experience, the jury could reasonably conclude that the cost of repair or replacement easily exceeded \$250 per door or \$1000 in the aggregate." (A. 4).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In its decision below, the Third District applied a "life-experience" exception to the general rule that it is necessary for the state to present evidence of the cost of repair or replacement in a criminal mischief case, if the state wishes to convict the defendant of mischief exceeding \$1000 threshold. This "lifeexperience" exception is contrary to well-established law which requires the state to prove its allegations beyond a reasonable doubt. See Carnley and Negron. The state's proof must be based on evidence; it cannot be left to inference or conjecture. See Id. The Third District's decision also conflicts with Miller and Wingfield which both hold that the evidence is insufficient in felony criminal mischief cases to prove a damage threshold greater than \$1000 when the state does not produce any evidence regarding the monetary value of damages. It is also contrary with Wingfield and T.B.S.'s requirement that determinations in assessing monetary figures for damage require special skill, experience, or training. Finally, its decision additionally conflicts with T.B.S., A.D., S.P., and Clark, as the facts below are not materially distinguishable from the facts in these cases.

ARGUMENT

THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S DECISION EXPRESSLY CONFLICTS WITH CARNLEY V. STATE, 89 So. 808 (FLA. 1921); NEGRON V. STATE, 306 So. 2d 104 (FLA. 1975), RECEDED FROM ON OTHER GROUNDS BY BUTTERWORTH V. FLEUELLEN, 389 So. 2d 968 (FLA. 1980); MILLER V. STATE, 667 So. 2d 325 (FLA. 1ST DCA 1995); WINGFIELD V. STATE, 751 So. 2d 134 (FLA. 2D DCA 2000); AND T.B.S. V. STATE, 935 So. 2d 98 (FLA. 2D DCA 2006).

In its decision below, the Third District Court of Appeal applied a "life-experience" exception to the general rule that it is necessary for the state to present evidence of the cost of repair or replacement in a criminal mischief case, if the state wishes to convict the defendant of mischief exceeding either the \$200 or \$1000 threshold. This "life-experience" exception is contrary to the criminal mischief statute, Section 806.13, Florida Statutes, and it is contrary to well-established law which requires the state to prove its allegations beyond a reasonable doubt. The state's proof must be based on evidence; it cannot be left to inference or conjecture. See Carnley v. State, 89 So. 808 (Fla. 1921); Negron v. State, 306 So. 2d 104 (Fla. 1975), receded from on other grounds by Butterworth v. Fleuellen, 389 So. 2d 968 (Fla. 1980).

In *Carnley*, this Court considered the case of whether the state presented sufficient evidence that the defendant committed the theft of property (hogs)

greater than \$20. At trial, evidence was presented that 3 hogs were taken and that the hogs were about 100 pounds. There was also evidence regarding the per pound market value of the hogs. However, it was unclear from the evidence whether the hogs weighed 100 pounds collectively or individually, only if the hogs weighed 100 pounds individually would their value have exceeded \$20.

In deciding whether there was sufficient evidence of theft of property greater than \$20, this Court reiterated that "[t]o establish guilt upon this charge proof beyond a reasonable doubt that the property stolen was of the value of \$20 or more is required." *Carnley*, 89 So. at 808. It then noted that it could be inferred that the witness meant that each individual hog weighed 100 pounds. This Court, however, then denied the existence of proof beyond a reasonable doubt based upon this inference and found that the evidence only supported a finding of petty larceny, not larceny greater than \$20. Specifically, this Court held: "But essential elements of a crime cannot be left to inference or conjecture. The accused is presumed innocent, and every essential element of the crime must be proved as alleged. This is especially true in this class of cases, where the grade of the offense depends upon the value of the property stolen." *See id.* (citations omitted) (emphasis added).

In *Negron*, this Court again reiterated: "The state had the burden to establish the offense charged beyond and to the exclusion of every reasonable doubt, not just

inferentially. Moreover, it must clearly prove the degree of the crime." *Negron*, 306 So. 2d at 107-108 (emphasis added). In *Negron*, the question presented was whether the defendant committed grand larceny in an amount greater than \$100, or petty larceny. The only evidence presented at trial was that the articles stolen from a store had a wholesale price of \$96.70. There was no evidence regarding their market or retail value. This Court reduced the charge to petty larceny as "[t]he stolen articles had 'some value' but there is not sufficient evidence of the items' market value or retail value at the time of the theft." *Id.* at 108.

The Third District's finding that based on common experience the jury could conclude that the monetary value of damage exceeds a \$1000 threshold is in direct contravention of *Carnley* and *Negron* which both hold that the state has the burden to establish the monetary value of damage beyond and to the exclusion of all reasonable doubt, and that this proof cannot be based on inference or conjecture. The Third District's decision also conflicts with *Miller v. State*, 667 So. 2d 325 (Fla. 1st DCA 1995) and *Wingfield v. State*, 751 So. 2d 134 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000) which both hold that the evidence is insufficient in felony criminal mischief cases to prove a damage threshold greater than \$1000 when the state does not produce any evidence regarding the monetary value of damages.

In Miller, the defendant was found guilty of felony mischief for kicking out

the rear window of a police vehicle. The evidence only included a description of the damage to the window. As there was no testimony regarding the monetary value of this damage, the First District reduced the conviction to second degree misdemeanor mischief. *See Miller*, 667 So. 2d at 329, citing *R.A.P. v. State*, 575 So. 2d 277, 279 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991).

In Wingfield, the defendant was charged with felony criminal mischief for ramming his pick-up truck into a police cruiser. A police officer and an accident reconstruction specialist related that more than \$1500 damage was caused to the police cruiser. The defendant argued that these witnesses were not qualified to offer opinion testimony regarding the amount of damages. The Second District agreed and held: "an opinion assessing a monetary figure for damage to a vehicle after an accident requires special knowledge, skill, experience, or training. Hence, the State must qualify the police officer, the accident reconstruction specialist, or some other witness as such an expert." Wingfield, 751 So. 2d at 136. The Second District reduced the charge to second degree misdemeanor criminal mischief as there was no testimony from a qualified witness regarding the actual amount of damages. The Third District's application of a "life-experience" exception to proving the monetary value of damages is also contrary to Wingfield's requirement that opinion testimony for assessing a monetary figure for damage to a vehicle

following an accident requires special skill, experience, or training.

In its opinion, the Third District cites to several cases in support of its statement "[i]t has been said that a trial court may conclude that certain repairs are so self-evident that the fact-finder could concluded based on life experience that the statutory damage threshold has been met. . . ." *See Marrero v. State*, 34 Fla. L. Weekly D2457 (Fla. 3d DCA November 25, 2009) (internal quotations omitted) *citing T.B.S.*; *A.D.*; *S.P.*; and *Clark*. These cases all recognize this statement regarding a "life-experience" exception, however, none of them apply this exception. ¹

In *Clark*, the defendant was charged with third degree felony mischief for crashing his car into another vehicle. The First District recognized that in theft

This statement originated in *Jackson v. State*, 413 So. 2d 112 (Fla. 2d DCA 1982). In *Jackson*, the defendant was charged with first degree grand theft for stealing a 37-foot operable sailboat. There was no non-hearsay testimony regarding the market value of the sailboat. The *Jackson* court noted that the Legislature amended the theft statute, Section 812.012(9) in 1977 to include the following provision "[i]f the exact value of the property cannot be ascertained, you should attempt to determine a minimum value. If you cannot determine the minimum value, you must find the value is less than \$100." Based on this amendment, the court concluded that this provision does not necessarily mean that a jury can rely on its general knowledge, "[i]t does appear, however, that it may be utilized where, though no direct evidence of value is presented, there is a value which by the very nature of the stolen property itself is indicate of an incontrovertible minimum value." *Jackson*, 413 So. 2d at 114. No similar provision exists in the criminal mischief statute. *See* § 806.13, Fla. Stat. (2006).

cases value may be so self-evident as to defy contradiction, but it did not apply this exception as the testimony and photographs presented only related to the damage of the vehicle, not the amount of the damage. In A.D., the Second District quoted *Clark*, but it did not apply this exception to the juvenile who was charged with felony criminal mischief for damaging a vacant rental home. In A.D., there were photographs and testimony regarding the extent of the damages, and there was some testimony regarding the monetary value of the damage, but there was no testimony that the amount of the damages exceeded \$1000. In S.P., the juvenile was charged with felony criminal mischief for vandalizing a car by running a screwdriver along the hood and fender gouging the paint. The victim and a police officer testified that the car sustained substantial damage and photographs of the damage were admitted into evidence. There was no non-hearsay testimony regarding the amount of the damage. Again, as in S.P., the Second District recognized but did not apply the Clark exception finding that there was only sufficient evidence that the damages exceeded \$200, not \$1000.

Finally, in *T.B.S.*, a juvenile was charged with felony criminal mischief for smashing in five car windows, including the windshield and the back window. A description and photographs of the damage were admitted into evidence, but the only evidence of the monetary value of the damage amount was the victim's

hearsay testimony. While citing *A.D.* and *S.P.*, and *Clark*, the Second District court held "[t]he trial court articulated no life experience or other basis that would constitute sufficient evidence to support its finding that the damage to the victim's car exceeded \$1000." *T.B.S.*, 935 So. 2d at 99. The court found only sufficient evidence of first degree criminal mischief.

The non-application of this "life-experience" exception in *T.B.S.*; *A.D.*; *S.P.*; and *Clark* also conflicts with the Third District's decision below as the facts in *T.B.S.*; *A.D.*; *S.P.*; and *Clark* are not materially distinguishable from the facts below. Additionally, as in *T.B.S.*, in the case below, there was no evidence that the fact finders (the jurors) had life-experience or any other basis that would constitute sufficient evidence to support a monetary value finding in excess of \$1000.

CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing argument that the Third District's decision below expressly conflicts with decisions of the this Court and other district courts of appeal, Mr. Marrero respectfully requests that this Court exercise its jurisdiction, under Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution, to resolve this conflict.