IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC09-2390 L.T. CASE NO. 3D08-188

LEONARDO MARRERO,

Petitioner,

VS.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

BILL McCOLLUM Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

RICHARD L. POLIN Criminal Appeals Bureau Chief, Miami Florida Bar Number 0230987

LUNAR C. ALVEY Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar Number 0713473 Office of the Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs 444 Brickell Avenue, Suite 650 Miami, Florida 33131

Tel: (305) 377-5441 Fax: (305) 377-5655

INTRODUCTION

The Respondent, the State of Florida, was the Appellee in the Third District Court of Appeal and the prosecution in the trial court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, in and for Miami-Dade County. The Petitioner was the Appellant and the defendant, respectively in the lower courts. In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The Symbol "A." refers to Petitioner's Appendix which was attached to his jurisdictional brief, and consisted of a conformed copy of the district court's opinion.

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

The relevant facts stated in the Third District Court of Appeal's slip opinion Marrero v. State, 22 So. 3d 822 (Fla. 3d DCA November 25, 2009), are as follows:

This is an appeal of a conviction for criminal mischief. The question is whether the evidence was legally sufficient to establish that the damage was \$1000 or greater. See § 806.13 (1)(b)3., Fla. Stat. (2006). We affirm.

After gambling losses, defendant-appellant Marrero drove his Ford F150 pickup truck into an entrance at the Miccosukee Casino. The entrance consisted of four impact-resistant glass doors, sixteen or seventeen feet tall, each framed in special aluminum materials. One of these was a door with an automated entry system for the handicapped. The doors had been operational prior to the crash, but were destroyed, and had to be replaced. In addition, a patron of the casino was injured.

The State charged the defendant with criminal mischief. The offense is a third-degree felony if the damage is \$1000 or greater. For this crime, the amount of damage is measured by the cost of repair or cost of replacement. (A. 2). If there is no competent evidence of value, then the conviction must be for the lowest level of offense, a misdemeanor of the second degree. See id. § 806.13(1)(b)1. (A. 2-3).

In this case the State did not present any evidence of the cost of repair or replacement of the four doors. The defense moved for a judgment of acquittal on that count, which was denied. The defendant was convicted as charged, and has appealed.

As a general rule, it will be necessary for the State to present evidence of the cost of repair or replacement in a criminal mischief case, if the State wishes to convict the defendant of mischief exceeding either the \$200 or \$1000 threshold. See id. § 806.13(1)(b)2.,3. (A. 3).

806.13 Criminal mischief; penalties; penalty for minor.—

- (1)(a) A person commits the offense of criminal mischief if he or she willfully and maliciously injures or damages by any means real or personal property belonging to another, including, but not limited to, the placement of graffiti thereon or other acts of vandalism thereto.
- (b)1. If the damage to such property is \$200 or less, it is a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.
- 2. If the damage to such property is greater than \$200 but less than \$1,000, it is a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.
- 3. if the damage is \$1,000 or greater or if there is interruption or impairment of a business operation or public communication, transportation, supply of water, gas or power, or other public service which costs \$1,000 or more in labor and supplies to restore, it is a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.

¹ The statute provides, in part:

² By contrast, under the theft statute, the general rule is that value means fair market value at the time of theft. <u>Bloodsaw v. State</u>, 994 So. 2d 378, 379 (Fla. 3d DCA 2008).

It has been said that "a trial court may conclude 'that certain repairs are so self-evident that the fact-finder could conclude based on life experience that the statutory threshold has been met . . ." <u>T.B.S. v. State</u>, 935 So. 2d 98, 99 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006) (quoting <u>A.D. v. State</u>, 866 So. 2d 752, 753 (Fla. 2d DCA 2004)); <u>S.P. v. State</u>, 884 So. 2d 136, 138 (Fla. 2d DCA 2004); <u>Clark v. State</u>, 746 So. 2d 1237, 1241 (Fla. 1st DCA 1999). (A. 3-4).

In this case the jury had a videotape of the collusion which destroyed four extremely tall impact-resistant doors, including one door with a special mechanism for handicapped entry. We agree with the trial court that based on common experience, the jury could reasonably conclude that the cost of repair or replacement easily exceeded \$250 per door or \$1000 in the aggregate. We therefore affirm the conviction and the restitution order. (A. 4, footnote 3 omitted).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

There is no basis upon which discretionary review can be granted in this case. The Third District Court's opinion does not conflict with Carnley v. State, 89 So. 808 (Fla. 1921); Negron v. State, 306 So. 2d 104 (Fla. 1975); Miller v. State, 667 So. 2d 325 (Fla. 1st DCA 1995); Wingfield v. State, 751 So. 2d 134 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000); or T.B.S. v. State, 935 So. 2d 98 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006), or any case of this Court or of any other district court in Florida. Consequently, conflict jurisdiction does not exist for the exercise of this Court's discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below. This Court should therefore deny Petitioner's petition to review the decision of the district court.

ARGUMENT

PETITIONER'S APPLICATION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW MUST BE DENIED BECAUSE THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S DECISION DOES NOT DIRECTLY OR EXPRESSLY CONFLICT WITH A DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OR THIS COURT.

Petitioner contends that this Court should invoke its discretionary review power to review the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in the instant case. Petitioner claims that the Third District erred by failing to apply the standard contained in <u>Carnley</u>, <u>Negron</u>, <u>Miller</u>, <u>Wingfield</u> and <u>T.B.S</u>, <u>supra</u>.

The jurisdiction of this Court is limited to a narrow class of cases enumerated in the Florida Constitution. As this Court explained in The Florida Star v. B.J.F., 530 So.2d 286, 288 (Fla. 1988), the state constitution creates two separate concepts regarding this Court's discretionary review. The first concept is the broad general grant of subject-matter jurisdiction. The second more limited concept is a constitutional command as to how this Court may exercise its discretion in accepting jurisdiction. 530 So.2d at 288. This Court noted it lacked jurisdiction to review district court opinions that fail to expressly address a question of law. Id. Further, this Court lacks jurisdiction over district court opinions that contain only citation to other case law unless the case cited as controlling authority is pending before this Court, or has been reversed or receded by this Court, or explicitly notes a contrary holding of another district court or this Court. 530 So.2d at 288 n.3, citing, Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. (1980) and Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), which provides that the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court may be sought to review a decision of a district court of appeal which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. Decisions are considered to be in express and direct conflict when the conflict appears within the four corners of the majority decisions. Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). (Emphasis added). Neither the record itself nor the dissenting opinion may be used to establish jurisdiction. Id. at 830 (citing to Jenkins v. State, 385 So. 2d 1356 (Fla.1980)). Accord Dept. of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So. 2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986) (the court rejected "inherent" or "implied" conflicts).

This Court cannot exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below because, contrary to Petitioner's claim, the decision below is not in direct or express conflict with "Florida Supreme Court precedent," or any decision from this Court or any other district court on the same question of law.

None of the cases upon which Petitioner relies establishes express or direct conflict with the Third District's opinion in this case. Each case cited has its own unique and distinctive facts, as does the instant case. Thus, the self-evident nature (or non-self-evident nature) of extensive damage can not be compared from one

case to the next given the given the differences and complexity in the properties damaged and the extent of the damage from one case to the next. Simply because it is not self-evident that the property damage does not exceed \$1,000 in one case does not in and of itself establish conflict with another case where, due to its distinctive facts, the extent of the damage is self-evident.

In the decision below, the Third District Court specifically held that: "It has been said that 'a trial court may conclude 'that certain repairs are so self-evident that the fact-finder could conclude based on life experience that the statutory damage threshold has been met " (A. 3-4) (citations omitted) (emphasis added). The Third District further held that as the jury viewed a videotape of the collusion which destroyed the doors and thus, could reasonably conclude that the cost of repair or replacement easily exceeded \$250 per door or \$1000 in the aggregate. (A. 4). This statement does not contradict the this Honorable Court's holding in Carnley as the item this Court was seeking to value was livestock, specifically hogs. The weight and value accorded to livestock cannot be equated to sixteen to seventeen foot aluminum framed, impact-resistant glass doors, with an automated entry for the handicapped. The jury had this information and additionally watched the doors break on the videotape when the truck crashed through them. The Third District's decision does not conflict with this Honorable Court's opinion in Negron as the items being valued in that case fell under the theft statute and in its opinion the Third Stated that, "By contrast, under the theft statute, the general rule is that value means fair market value at the time of the theft." (A. 3, FN 2, citation omitted). This Honorable Court specifically held in Negron that "Proof of the element of value is essential to a conviction for grand larcey..."

Negron at 108. Carnley also falls under the theft statute. Fair market value was not at issue in the instant case.

Miller can be distinguished from the instant case in that the First District held that no evidence was introduced at trial concerning the amount of damage appellant caused when he kicked out the rear window of the patrol car. Miller at 329. In the case at bar, as stated the in the Third District's opinion, the record reflects the dimensions of the doors, that there was a handicapped entrance that had an electronic mechanism and what the doors were made of. Additionally, the jury viewed the videotape of how much of the doors was destroyed by the impact.

Wingfield can be distinguished from the instant case in that it involves damage to a vehicle. In Wingfield, the Second District held that the State failed to show that the police officers had any particular knowledge of their police cruiser or the cost of the repair of the police cruiser. The Second specifically held that "an opinion assessing a monetary figure for damage to a *vehicle* after an accident requires special knowledge, skill, experience or training." Wingfield at 136

(emphasis added). This opinion appears to have only been specifically directed to damage on vehicles.

In <u>T.B.S.</u> Second District stated that, "The trial court articulated no life experience or other basis that would constitute sufficient evidence to support the finding that the damage to the victim's car exceeded \$1000." <u>T.B.S.</u> at 99. In the instant case the Third District stated that, "In this case the jury had a videotape of the collusion which destroyed four extremely tall impact-resistant doors, including one door with a special mechanism for handicapped entry. We agree with the trial court that based on common experience, the jury could reasonably conclude that the cost of repair or replacement easily exceeded \$250 per door or \$1000 in the aggregate." (A. 4). Therefore, based upon the Third District's opinion, the record appears to reflect that the jury was presented with sufficient evidence in the form of the videotape of the damage as it occurred, the dimensions of the doors, a special aspect of the doors, and what the doors were made of.

Thus, the Third District's opinion in the instant case does not expressly and directly conflict with this Honorable Court's opinions in Negron or Carnley, the First District's opinion in Miller, or the Second District's opinions in T.B.S. or Wingfield, another district court of appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. Therefore, the Third District Court's opinion does not

give rise to any express conflict and this petition to invoke discretionary review must be denied.

CONCLUSION

Wherefore, based upon the foregoing argument and authorities cited herein, Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court reject discretionary jurisdiction in this cause.